TIOGA COUNTY ED&P/TOURISM/CCE/SOIL & WATER
LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA
January 6, 2026
1:00 PM

e  MINUTES
o Approval of minutes of December 2, 2025

e FINANCIAL
o Economic Development
o Planning
o Sustainability Management

e  OLD BUSINESS
o Reports
Granfts
Economic/Community Development
Land Bank
Workforce Development
Planning
Sustainability Management
IDA
Misc.

O 0O O 0O O O O O

o NEW BUSINESS
o Reports
Grants
Economic/Community Development
Land Bank
Workforce Development
Planning
Sustainability Management
IDA
Misc.

O O O 0O O O O O

° PERSONNEL
o Administrative Coordinator

e  RESOLUTIONS
A09-Authorize Agreement with Deluge Media
A24-Recommend Members to the Susquehanna Heritage Area
Commission
A25-Appoint Administrative Coordinator (LWilliams)



A26-Approval of EPA Brownfield Grant Application
A33-TCPDC Bylaws Amendment January 2026
A35-Appoint HMurray At-Large TCPDC Board Member
PROCLAMATIONS - N/A

ADJOURNMENT



TEAM TIOGA

we work for you

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING | INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY |  LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING
TOURISM/AGRICULTURE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
December 2, 2025
ATTENDEES:

Legislators: Ron Ciofoli, Keith Flesher, Andrew Aronstam, Jake Brown, Marte Sauerbrey
Staff: Brittany Woodbum, Linda Sampson, Ellen Pratt, Cathy Haskell, Jackson Bailey
Guests: Kristi Snyder, CCE Executive Director

Committee Chair, Ron Ciotoli, called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING (ED&P): Agenda and attachments previously
emailed.
I. MINUTES
A. Approval of minutes from November 4, 2025 — Committee Chair Ron Ciotoli asked for
approval of the minutes from the November 4, 2025, meeting. Legislator Brown made
a motion to accept the minutes from the November 4, 2025, meeting, seconded by
Legislator Flesher. All were in favor.

Ms. Woodburn reported the following:
Il. FINANCIAL
A. 2025 Budget
1. Economic Development
e Year-to-Date Budget is tfracking.
2. Planning
e Year-to-Date Budget is tracking.
3. Sustainability Management
e Year-to-Date Budget is tracking.

Ill. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS
A. Reports

1. Cornell Cooperative Extension — Monthly report previously emailed and is in the
committee packet. Dr. Snyder, CCE Executive Director, was in atftendance and
distributed an updated monthly report. Dr. Snyder reviewed her report highlighting
Campus Connection to Cornell, Community Connections, Master Gardners, 4-H
Youth Development, WIOA Youth Employment Program/Workforce, various
workshops and meetings.



Dr. Snyder announced the CCE Annual Meeting is Tuesday, December 9th, 5:00PM
at the Neighborhood Depot. RSVP is required. Also announced was Master
Gardners is putting on a wreath making event on Saturday, December 6 af
11:00AM. Dr. Kristi noted the Pumpkin Smash Event was a success.

2. Tourism — No monthly report this month.

3. Tioga County Soil & Water Conservation District — Monfhly report was previously
emailed and is in the committee packet.

4. Tioga County Economic Development & Planning — Dr. Ellen Praft reported on the
need for updating the County’s Debris Management Plan.

Dr. Pratt completed the plan in 2014. The plan was approved on the State level, but

never formerly approved by FEMA due to changes in the federal approval process

following Hurricane Sandy. Dr. Pratt reported the following:

e The updated plan will strengthen our disaster response, improve
interdepartmental coordination and ensure compliance with current FEMA
requirements.

e The goalis to recover faster, reduce confusion during activation and fully
protect our eligibility for FEMA reimbursement.

e Once approved through FEMA, we can enter into contracts fo activate when
needed.

e A meeting was held with Mr. Bailey, County Administrator, Mr. Hammond, DPW,
Ms. Comelius, Emergency Services, Ms. Woodburn, ED&P, Mr. Ruggiero, DPW.
Everyone agreed that revising the plan is critical.

e Ms. Comnelius is currently exploring outside funding to support this update and to
hire a consultant experienced in debris management plan development and
FEMA compliance.

Dr. Pratt shared pictures of the Pumpkin Smash Event and reported the number of

attendees was doubled from last year. Positive feedback was received, and plans

have begun to make it bigger and befter next year.
B. Grants
1. Active Grants — See attached EDP Grant Tracking spreadsheet. Ms. Woodburn
highlighted the following:
a. CDBG Microenterprise — Ms. Yelverton continues to work on this project.
e Funds were reallocated to existing projects after the resolution last month.

Another disbursement will be coming soon from the Stafe.
Labrador Lumber project is complete.
Ocular Prosthetics and Country Fit received another disbursement.
Owego Brewing and The Five are in the process of ordering more equipment.
Deluge has completed some festimonials.
The state reached out asking if we wanted to submit a renewal request for
$200,000.00 for additional funding. Required resolution for consideration is
listed below.
b. CDBG Public Facilities — Catholic Charities Grant for the mobile food truck. Ms.

Norton continues to work on this project.

e The contractor has started construction.

e Ventingisin, the generatoris in, fuel tanks are connected,

2



e Floors and insulation are to be completed next week.

e Completion date is estimated January/February 2026.

e Once delivered, the close-out process with CDBG and the State can fake a
while.

Ms. Woodburn distributed a picture of what has been completed so far on the food

fruck.

c. ARC READY - George Smith Park Master Park Plan — Ms. Woodburn distributed
the draft concept plan and reported this is a partnership with the Land Bank
and the County for acquiring property. ED&P is applying for funds through the
CDBG Imminent Threat Program on behalf of Land Bank for demolishing a
blighted house with safety concerns next to the park. This will allow parking for
the park. A map of the property was distributed.

d. EPA Brownfields application — Ms. Woodburn reported:

e Last year we contracted with LaBella to assist with the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfields application.

e The application wasn't selected for funding due to improvement needed on
the application.

e ED&P would like to resubmit the application with the suggested changes by
EPA staff.

e The resolution for consideration will be brought forward next month.

e This allows for a countywide assessment of potential brownfield sites;
abandoned gas stations, reclaimed mining pits and other
vacant/abandoned buildings.

e This assessment opens opportunities for the County to apply for additional
funds through this program and other sources to bring properties back to
productive reuse.

e A resolution to apply for $500,000.00 in grant funds fo hire a consultant to
complete the assessment will be brought forward next month for
consideration.

e No match is required. Program delivery costs are included.

C. Economic/Community Development
1. Business Visits — ED&P staff have made annual visits to Raymond Hadley, Ensco,

Norwesco, Best Buy, Rynone, Midwestern and Southern Tier Hardwoods and

continue to work on other visits. The following is discussed on these visits:

e Making connections with AM&T to help with workforce training and inform
them of any grants available to them.

e ED&P is trying to advocate for them with the State on bringing back the
Equipment Modernization Program that the State did last year. It was the first
time they had given a capital grant to improve equipment.

o Most times ESD does these programs when there is job creation. This is difficult
for our small to mid-size manufacturing businesses. We are trying fo advocate
with the State and our IDA's and EDO’s across the Southern Tier to gef the
state to bring this program back.




e Previously they rolled out the program without much notice and there wasn't
enough time for the manufacturers to apply and then the State claimed they
didn't get much of a response.

o ED&P was successful in getting one of those grants for Tioga Hardwoods, but
we would like to help other manufacturing businesses.

2. Tioga County Foundation Coalition — Ms. Norton continues to work on this. The
annual meeting is scheduled for mid-December and is assisting the Coburn Free
Library to connect with some of the Foundations for a project they have going on
for HVAC upgrades.

3. DRI - Owego — ED&P has only one mulfi-site program project outstanding. By the
end of the year all the others will be complete.

e 37-41 Lake Street — The exterior project is complete; the interior project is
going out fo bid.

e The returned funds from Applied Technology are available and must be
reallocated. This is not part of our contract with the IDA. It's a separate
contract with ESD.

e These projects have been submitted to the state and are waiting for a
response on which project they are going fo select.

4. NY Forward - Village of Waverly. Ms. Woodburn reported this project is moving
along.

a. Small Projects Fund — Thoma Consultants is assisting the Village of Waverly with
this fund. They had a public meeting, and four potential projects were
sponsored at the meeting. Ms. Yelverton is going fo sit on the selection
committee.

b. Public Projects — The Village of Waverly is moving forward with Hunt Engineering
and has issued the coniract. The NYS Department of State has approved it, and
a kick-off meeting is scheduled with the steering committee. Ms. Norfon will be
sitting on this committee.

5. Strategic Plan — The Strategic Plan Project Stafus Report was in the committee
packet previously emailed. Ms. Woodburn reviewed the report.

D. Land Bank

1. 81 North Avenue, Owego - This project is complete except that NYSEG is coming in
to finish the electric work this week.

2. 247 Main Street, Owego — The design work is underway. Deluge came in fo fake the
“before” pictures. The design work should be done in the next month or two and
then the project will go out o bid.

3. 121 Providence Street, Waverly — With the building permit in place, construction has
begun. The contractor that did the work on 81 North is working on this project as
well.

Ms. Woodburn reported on getting the necessary snow removal on all properties.

4. LBI Property Services application — This application for 2M has been submitted.
There are projects coming up that can use these additional funds.

E. Workforce Development

1. OACSD/BT BOCES Satellite Campus — Ms. Woodburn distributed the press release

from the Owego Apalachin School District. It was nof expected that the

4



Congressional Direct Spending Funds would come through, but the award of
$811,000 was announced recently. ED&P assisted with the application for this
funding for the school. With the addition of the 1M of funds awarded through the
ARC/Southern Tier 8 process that ED&P also assisted with, the project is fully funded
at this fime. The school is contributing 1M to the project. ED&P will not be assisting
with managing the grant funds. However, ED&P will set up a meeting with an USDA
rep fo assist them.

F. Planning

1. 239 Reviews — There were no 239 Reviews this month.

2. Southern Tier 8 Regional Housing & Infrastructure Summit — Southern Tier 8 held a
workshop regarding a regional housing development plan they are working on to
attract investors by packaging projects across counties. Ms. Jardine, Ms. Zubalsky-
Peer and Ms. Patton attended this workshop.

3. NYS American Farmland Trust - farmer workshops — Dr. Snyder reported on this
earlier.

G. Sustainability Management
1. 2025 Pumpkin Smash — November 8. Dr. Pratt and Dr. Snyder reported on this

earlier.
2. Debris Management Plan - Dr. Pratt reported on this earlier.
3. 2025 YTD -
a. Paid to Broome County 2025 2024
i. HHW $9,132.55  $9.266.55
i. E-Waste $ 721.00 $1,994.65

b. Towns/County(E-waste) $1,096.20 $2,261.20
H. IDA
1. Lockheed Martin PILOT application — The public hearing was held, and the Cost

Benefit Analysis was presented. There were no comments. Ms. Woodburn attended
the Legislative Meeting and Ms. Schnablis attending the Owego Apalachin School
District meeting today. No response from the Town of Owego yet. The Cost Benefit
Analysis and PILOT application will be presented to the IDA Board for approval on
Wednesday.

. PERSONNEL - N/A

RESOLUTIONS

LO7-Reappoint Member (Vicki Davis) fo the Tioga County Planning Board
L08-Reappoing Planning Board Member — Chrzanowski

LO9-Reappoint Member (Joe Budney) to the Tioga County Planning Board
L10-Reappoint Member (Grady Updyke) to the Tioga County Planning Board
L11-Appointment to Tioga County Ag and Farmland Protection Board — Campbell
L12-Reappoint Member to Ag and Farmland Protection Board

L13-Resolution to Renew SWCD Hazard Mitigation Plan Coordination Services 2026
L14-Authorize County Ag and Farmland Protection Plan Grant

L19-Authorize Intermunicipal Agreement Broome-Tioga Arts Cultural Master Plan
L33-Appoint Member (MSchnabl) to the Broome-Tioga Workforce Development Board

5



L34-Appoint REAP Board Member (MNorton)

L35-Reappoint At-Large Member (BWoodburn) to STERPDB Regional Board

L 36-Reappoint Michael Baratta fo the TCPDC for Two Year Term
L37-Reappoint Joan Case to the TCPDC for Two Year Term

L38-Reappoint At Large Member R Kelsey to the TCPDC

L40-Authorize EDP to Submit CDBG Microenterprise Renewal Application
LL51-Appoint Member to the TCDA — Ciotoli

L58-Modify Snowmobile Grant Program Budget for 70% Award Disbursement fo
Snowmobile Clubs

After reviewing the above resolutions, Ms. Woodburn asked this committee for support to
move the resolutions forward. The vote to support the above resolution follows:
Legislator Ciotoli — yes
Legislator Flesher —yes
Legislator Brown —yes
Legislator Aronstam — yes
VI. PROCLAMATIONS - N/A

VIl. ADJOURNMENT
With no further topics of discussion or questions, the meeting was adjourned at 1:55 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted,
Linda Sampson
Administrative Assistant Economic Development & Planning



pngpaALb :a1 weaboud

HP
T obed LEIET onmmeﬁMN :pore.ausb 3ode
00°00Z°289 00" 00" 002289 0 00Z'/89 S3aSNAdX3d TVLO0L
00°000‘SET- 00" 00° 000‘SET- 0 000‘SET~ SANNIATY TV10L

%0 " 00°002°2SS 00° 00" 002 2SS 0 00Z°2SS pund |eJausd 1vLiOL
%0° 00°00Z°2SS 00" 00" 002'2SS 0 002 2SS judwdo|dAda DLwouodd TVLOL
%0 " 00°66 00° 00" 66 0 66 abuLad dea 886885 ZZ¥9V
%0° 00°080°22T 00" 00" 080°2¢T 0 080'2¢T 4 92UBJNSUI Y3I|edH 880985 ZZVIV
%0 " 00'69¢ 00" 00" 69¢€ 0 69¢€ ueansur AyL|Lgesta 985585 ZI¥IV
%0°" 00°T2L‘L 00° 00" T2L'L 0 12L°L Lyesuadwod SJ@)Jom 880%8S ZZVIV
%0° 00°8€L°2¢ 00" 00° 8€.'C¢E 0 8€/'2¢E Jd4 A3LJndes |eLdos 880E8S CZVIV
%0° 00704609 00° 00" 026°09 0 0609 4 JuswaJl1dy d31edsS 880T8S VoV
%0" oo.on”¢ 00° 00" 0Z8'tv 0 0z8'v Joyro [|v/BuLutedl €€20¥S TZYIV
%0 " 00°000°T 00° 00" 000‘T 0 000°T auoyda|al 09905 CZYIV
%0" 00"00T 00" 00" 00T 0 00T d9suadx3 oJem1jos 0zZ90¥S ZIv9V
%0 " 00°06T ‘6T 00" 00° 06T ‘6T 0 06T ‘6T poJapuay SIDLAJBS 06S0VS 2ZVIV
%0° 00°0$8°‘T 00" 00" 0S8‘T 0 0S8°T Jaded/buLiuLad  S8YOVS 2ZVIV
%0 " 00°08¢€ 00" 00" 08¢ 0 08¢ abeisod 08v0VS ZZYIV
%0°" 00°082°T 00° 00" 082'T 0 08Z'T saL|ddns @dLJ40 02¥0¥S 22H9V
%0° 00°0S 00" 00" 0S 0 0S osuadxa obed| LW 06E£0¥S CZVIV
%0° 007052 00° 00" 0§Z 0 0SZ pood/s|eaW 09€0vS ZZvIV
%0 00°000‘T 00" 00" 000'T 0 000°T nb3 edLAJRS/pESedT QZEOVS 2ZVIV
%0 " 00°0ST 00" 00" 0ST 0 0ST Lond 9| Lqowoany (0ZzZ0¥S CZVoV
%0 " 00°000‘T 00" 00" 000°T 0 000°T sana  08TOVS ZIV9v
%0 " 00°000‘C 00° 00° 000‘2 0 000‘? @dueusluLel Jed 0200vS ZZVoV
%0" 00°00S 00" 00" 00§ 0 00S s)oog  0¥00¥S 2ZV9V
%0 " 00°000°¢€ 00" 00" 000‘€ 0 000°€ BuLsLiIJdApPY QTO0PS 2ZVIV
%0 " 00" €ST‘92¥ 00° 00" €ST 9CY 0 €ST 92V swLlL LLhd OTOOTS ¢Z¥9V
%0" 00°000°0S- 00" 00" 00005~ 0 000°‘0S- nuwod) 1 dWOH JOYl0 T68TZY 2ZYIV
%0°" 00°000‘0S- 00" 00" 00005~ 0 000°‘0S- D23 Ol uoLINqLJAUOD (0686TH VIV
%0°" 00°000°‘S€- 00° 00" 000°S€- 0 000°S€- L®3O0W/|®I0H U0 XelL ZETTTIV ZZvoV

RUBWAo] ARd I LUOUODH

102/3sSN 1395ang
1Dd J1aVI1IVAY.

SADONVHEWNINT IVNLOY dlA 135and

a3STIAIY SLNNODDY|

T0 920¢ 04

SLWLS Cay dOdddV : pun4d [eJdaus9
SUANVR.L TIVYNIDIHO L 40

LM0d3aY 139dng 31LvVA-0L-dViA
Ayuno9o ebol |

NHOA MIN "ALNNOD VOOIL (&)



pnqpaAkLb :qI wedboud
Juosdues 1Jasn
Z abed /€1€T 9202/20/T0 :pdiedsusb uaoday

w» BPULT ‘uosdwes Aq pa1eJsudd - 1¥0d3I¥ 40 ANI s

%0° 00°002"2SS 00" 00" 002°2SS 0 002°25S IVLOL ANVYD

7100/3sN 135and SADNVAENNIOND IVALDY dLA 135and SIWLSCay dOdddV

19d A9V IIVAV d3STAZN SHUANVRL VYNIDIHO

T0 920¢ 04

1L30d3y 139dngd 3LVA-0L-dVIA
A juno9 eboil

WHOA MIN 'ALNNOD Y90IL (3




pnqpaA |6 1a1 wedboud

+d9S
T abed ThiET ﬁmmwwmﬁw :paieJauab 130da
00" ¥T0‘8€€ 00° 00" yT0°8€E 0 yT0°8€€ S3SNAAX3 V10l
%0°" 00" ¥T0‘8E€E 00" 00" ¥10'8€€ 0 ¥TO‘8¢€€ pundg |eJaUSD TVIOL
%0° 00 ¥T0‘8€E 00" 00" yT0°8€E€E 0 $T08€EE fuLuue|d TvVLiOL
%0 " 00" SY 00" 00" Sy 0 Sy oburud dea 886885 0208V
%0° 00" /¥0°SS 00" 00" L¥0°SS 0 L¥0'SS 4 ®@dueJdnsur yi|eoH 880985 0Z08Y
%0 " 00" 29T 00" 00" 19T 0 /9T ueansur AyL|LqesLd 885585 0Z08Y
%0° 00°T8%‘€ 00° 00" T8%°¢€ 0 T8 € L3esuadwod sJaXJoMm  880%8S 0Z08Y
%0° 00°29.'%T 00" 00" 9L YT 0 29L'vT J4 A1LJndes |eLdos 880€8S 0Z08Y
%0 " oo.~m¢”nm 00" 00° 6 LT 0 6¥ 12 4 JudweJ L1y 23elS 880T8S 0208V
%0 " 00°002'T 00" 00" 00Z'T 0 00Z'T Jayao LLv/buLuredal €€.0¥S 0Z08Y
%0° 00°009 00° 00" 009 0 009 auoyda|al 0990¥S 0Z08Y
%0° oo.mhw“¢ 00° 00" S/8'Y 0 S/8°Y poJopusy S8DLAJDS 06S0¥S 0208V
%0° 00°000°'T 00" 00" 000°T 0 000°‘T Joded/buLiuLad §8¥0¥S 0Z08Y
%0° 007006 00" 00" 006 0 006 abeasod 08y0vS 0Z08Y
%0" 00°00S 00° 00" 006§ 0 006§ saL|ddns @dL4J0 0¢PO¥S 0Z08Y
%0° 00°009 00" 00" 009 0 009 osuodxa obed| LW 06£0¥S 0Z08Y
%0° 00°06T 00" 00° 06T 0 06T pood/s|eaW (09€0¥S 0Z08Y
%0" 00°002°T 00" 00" 00Z'T 0 00Z'T nb3a 8dLAJDS/pased] 0ZEOVS 0208V
%0 " 00°00¢ 00" 00" 00¢ 0 00¢ L®nd 9| Lqowoany (0ZzZovs 0Z08Y
%0 " 00°008 00" 00" 008 0 008 sana (08TO¥S 0208V
%0° 00°000°2Z¢€ 00° 00" 000‘2¢ 0 000°2¢ JLAJ®S BuLidedauod QO¥TO¥S 0208V
%0° 00°009 00" 00° 009 0 009 s)ood  0¥00¥S 0Z08Y
%0" 00°00¢ 00" 00" 00¢ 0 00¢ puLsLiddApy  O0TOOYS 0208V
%0° 00°SST‘Z6T 00" 00° GSTZ6T 0 GST 26T BwLL [Lh4d OTOOTS 0208Y
J02/3sn 135and SIAINVAIWNDIND IVNLOY dLA 1395and SLWLS LAy dOdddV pund |edau=9

10d 1AV IIVAV (EfSHvAER: SHANVL IYNIDTHO 1404 SINNODDY

70 970z o4

L¥0d3y 139dng FLVA-0L-¥VIA
fAuno9 eboil

MYOA MIN "ALNNOD Y9011 :_



pngpaALb :qI wedboud
quosdues taasn
z abed Zvi€T 9202/20/10 :po3e.ausb 1uodoy

ws BPULT ‘uosdwes Agq pa1eJaudd - 1¥0dIY 40 ANI s

%0° 00" ¥T0‘8€€ 00" 00" vT0'8€€ 0 yTO‘8EE IVLOL ANVID

100/3SN 135dang SAINVAEWNINT AVNLOY aLA 135and SLIWLS Cay: d0dddV

19d A7aVIIVAV A3STAIY SHANV L VYNIDTHO

T0 9207 0

L¥0d3d 139adnd Lva-0L1-dVIA
funo9 eboil

MHOA MIN "ALNNOD VOOIL n



pngpak|b :a1 weuaboud
3i3edd 149sn

T abed £0:TT §202/62/21 :peredauab 3uodoy
S¥*290'6VT 18°8.8 LTSyl LST 989/0€ 718'8 5/8'867 S3ISNIdXI V.LOL
00°9T8°T€- 00" 00" ¥95- 08¢€‘ze- 0 08¢ ‘z¢e- SANNIATY VIO0L

%y LS SYPTOvZ'LTT 18°8/8 LT T8T LST 90€ 622 Z18'8 S6% 992 pund |eJsusd TV.LOL
%y LS SYToveiLTT 18°8/8 LT T8T'LST 90€ ‘6.2 2188 S6¥ 992 abeqJen B asnyay TVLOL
%€ " 96 6S° 00" ¥ ST 9T 0 9T obulJd dva 886885 09T8Y
%€'96 0¥ 08 00" 0¥ 06¥%‘¢T T/26'2T 9/0'T S68‘TT 4 @dUBJNSUT Yi|esH 880985 09T8Y
% ¥8 8¢ 0T 00" 2L LS 89 0 89 uednsur AjL[LqesLad 885585 09T8Y
%€'96  LL'Vv¥ 00" 20" V9T'T 607'T ¥T S6T T Laesuadwod SJa)J0M 880¥8S 09T8Y
%€'96  €9°€0C 00" 8€°¥62"°S 86% 'S S6T €0€‘S Jd4 A1LJndes |eLdosS 880£8S 0918V
%€°96  6L°79¢€ 00" ¥S 2EV'6 S6.°6 289'¢ €IT L 4 JusWaJL1dY @31elS 880T8S 09T8Y
%0° 00°006"‘€ 00° 00" 006°‘€ 0 006‘€ sadLl 089ZFS 09TI8Y
%' T ST' 29601 00" S8 ZET S69°0T S0€- 000‘TT L4J0 2ON) soL|ddns 0#9Z¥S 09T8Y
%y'9T  69°¥ST'T 00" TESPT 00S‘T 0 00S°‘T Jaded/buLiuldd  S8yZYS 0918V
%6 LT  02°LLS'T9 00" 08" 22V €T 000°S/ 0 000°SZ nopJezeH p|oOYasnoH T9¢¢¥S 09T8Y
%L'SE 6V Z9¥ 09 18°8L¢€ ¥9°8ST €€ 000‘¥6 000 ‘- 00086 DLAJRS BULIDBJIUOD  OYTZFS 09T8V
%0° 00°002 00° 00" 002 0 002 abeisod (08¥0vS 0918V
%0 00°00T 00" 00" 00T 0 00T sur ‘seed4 ‘siLwJdd yyPOYS 09T8Y
%T'2¢  62°8SE'T 00° TL T¥9 0002 0 0002 saL|ddns 9dLJ40 0Z¥0¥S 09T8Y
%0° §/'99T 00" 00" 19T 0 19T asuadx3a abed| LW 06£0¥S 09T8Y
%8' L2 8V EWYP'T 00° 76°95S 0002 0 000°2 nba @dLAJRS/paseal (0ZEOYS 09T8Y
%0° 00°S.T 00" 00" ST 0 ST sena 08TO¥S 0918V
%€'?. v ¥8T'E 00° 00§ 9G°ST8‘L 00S'TT 000"V 00§ ‘2 BuLsLIJBAPY OTOOVS 09T8Y
2%0°00T 0€"- 00" 8T S¥8'Y Y8y Y8y 0 Jemod /@bJeq s|ool (082025 0918V
%1'66 68°C 00" TT°20€ S0€ S0€ 0 sdLeyd 0200¢S 0918V
%0°S6 T6°7LS‘E 00" 60°0LT°89 V'L 0 vL'TL dwLi|Lhd OTO0TS 0918V
2%0" 00°000‘0€- 00" 00" 000°0€- 0 000°0¢- 91B1S 91SBM PL[OS ¢686EY 09T8Y
2%0°S. 007 00T- 00" 00°00€~- 00%- 0 00V~ LWJdd JB|NeH 91seMm 00652y 09T8Y
%€ €T 00°9TL‘T- 00" 00" 92~ 086 ‘T~ 0 086 ‘T~ WwWoD % SWOH J3Yylr0 068TZF 0918V

Bbeqgued B asnyoy

135ang
J18VIIVAY.

SAINVIEWNING IVNLOY dLA 13s5and

A3STAI

SLWLS Cayv
/SUANVYHL

dOdddy
JVYNIDTHO

710D/3SN
1Dd

pun’ (BJaUsd v
1404 SLNNODIY

130d3y 139ang 3LvA-0L-dVIA
fAunoo ebol |

NHOA MIN 'ALNNOD VIOIL ©.#



pngpaAb :a1 weuaboud
3i3edd 1Jasn

4 obed £0:TT §202/62/2T :peaetausb 1lodoy

ws UDLLI ‘12Bdd AQ PoIBJDUDD - 1¥0dIY 40 ANI s

% LS S 9vTiLTT £8°8.8 LT T8T°LST 90€ ‘542 7188 S6¥99¢ IVL0L ANVYD

10D/3SN 135dng SADNVHEWNINT AVNLOY dLA 13sand SIWLSCay dOdddV

19d A18VITIVAY a3SINFY /SUANVYL JVNIDIHO

!

13043 139an9g 3LvA-OL-dVIA
funoo ebol |

YHOA MIN ‘ALNNOD Y90IL (3




-1 1 ~~ ~~ A 3 ~ 7~ 11 N} =y \
' A\ o { / i " ] \/
A f v/

s "’ S

SOITIOYWATER

- ~ N1 g = A O N i c T D

(
—

L

SWCD REPORT
December 2025

AGRICULTURE PROGRAM:

The District has several Ag Nonpoint Source Pollution Control grant contracts that are in closeout
phase (3), in addition to one Climate Resilient Farming grant to closeout. There are two active
contracts for CRF grant funding that are supporting 2 farms with cover crop implementation and
promote the District’s growing soil health program.

We are moving forward with 2 new Ag grants awarded in the summer. 1 focused on a prescribed
grazing system and the other will be planning for precision feed management.

District staff submitted 2 applications with 3 different farms to CRF Rd 9 grant application program.
Submitted to Track 2 Adaptation and Resiliency and Tack 4 Agricultural Forest Management.
Waiting on Award Announcements.

Tioga CCE construction completed on wetland and stormwater basins. Spring 2026 buffer planting
planned for ~ 12 acres.

We are currently working on closing out Rd 18 for our Agricultural Environmental Management
Program.

AFT Landowner Leasing Workshops held in Berkshire, Owego and Barton. Another series to be held
in January on Farm Succession Planning (see attached flier).

Buffer Program — staff participated in point plot survey training held by USC, this will be new
monitoring protocols for buffer stewards. Completed stake and tube removal on buffer sites,
provided presentation at the Watershed Forestry Task Force meeting held by USC. Working on
project plans for T4T for spring and finishing up paperwork for 2025 program work.

AEM 5-year strategic plan approved by board (attached executive summary).

HAZARD MITIGATION:

Working under the County contract, support hazard mitigation work, attending Village of Owego
Climate Smart Community steering committee. Assisted the Village of Owego with a submittal of a
planning grant to look at stormwater runoff at the Evergreen Cemetery. Also submitting a planning
grant for Owego Creek Watershed Assessment, and 2 implementation projects. Still waiting on
grant awards. Submitting final reimbursement request to County for 2025 work, working on
annual report.

Continuing to work with Village of Newark Valley and Town of Newark Valley on July Flash Flooding
impacts, surveys completed for project sites. The District will be conducting culvert assessments this
fall/winter.

STORMWATER:
= 4-Hr ESC training held 24 attendees all municipal staff involved in the BTSC.



STREAM PROGRAM:

= We continue to provide permit and design assistance to Landowner’s and municipalities when it
comes to stream work.

= WQJP application for a stream restoration project on W. Branch Owego Creek was approved; contract
received.

= Assisting Trout Unlimited with their Owego Creek Watershed Assessment by conducting culvert
assessments within the watershed.

= Zimmer Rd — Stream stabilization project for landowner is moving forward with contractor, secured
permits and assisted with permits and plan for stabilization.

= WAQIP —Assisting the Village of Waverly on a Watershed Assessment contract for Dry Brook.

ENGINEERING TEAM and PROJECT UPDATES:

Agreements for design work with Tompkins (10 Projects), Cortland (9), Steuben (1), Yates (3) and Otsego
(6). Staff Working on completing as-builts for completed projects in Otsego (4 projects). Team met
and also reviewed project priorities for 2026.

wQcc:
Meeting held on 12/11, discussion on Rain Barrel Program.

Miscellaneous:
= Ag Assessments — completed 5 parcels, total acres 394.05, ag acres 133.



Tioga County Soil Health Program
2025 Cover Crops

1190 210
NEW ACRES CONT. ACRES CRF R7 ACRES

$35/acre  $70/acre

) 17 Farms Total with 1 New Sign-up




“ Legend

| = Ny Counties
| W3 PA Counties

r

v ~ 1 NY-PA State Border

Cover Crops 2025

2025 Cover Crops

Created By:
D. Singer

Tioga County SWCD
Nov. 2025

*This map is for planning purposes only

1.5 3

Ticga County SWCD makes no represertations or warmanlies as
1o the accuracy or reliabilty of any information, resources or
data provided, preduced, compiled or cihenwise utilized by any person,
corporation or entity fer any purpose whatscever The user or any
third party may nct rely upon the accuracy of reliability of such
\nformation, resources or data. Any user o third party assumes all
rieks and liability in the utilization of any information, resources or data.
Photo 2013




T I O G A =& C O U N T Y

SOOI L‘@WA’]I‘]ER

C O NS E R V AT O N DI S T R I C T

AEM STRATEGIC PLAN
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

~. AGRICULTURAL
ENVIRONMENTAL
' MANAGEMENT

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

The Agricultural Environmental Management (AEM) Program is a voluntary,
confidential and locally-led approach to advancing environmental stewardship on farm
across NY State. The New York State Department of Agriculture and Markets and the
NYS Soil and Water Conservation Committee administer the AEM framework and
associated funding programs at the state-level and Soil and Water Conservation
Districts lead AEM at the local-level with farmers and conservation partners.

MISSION STATEMENT

To develop and sustain a long-term Agricultural Environmental Management (AEM)
program that supports Tioga County farms in addressing natural resource concerns.
Through collaboration with the District, conservation partners, agencies, and
stakeholders, the program promotes awareness, education, and resource prioritization
for both farming and non-farming communities. Our goal is to work with all interested
farms—including traditional and nontraditional operations—to implement Best
Management Practices (BMPs) and provide access to cost-share funding and outreach
opportunities.

VISION STATEMENT

To foster a future where all farms in Tioga County operate in an environmentally
responsible and economically viable manner, supported by a strong AEM program that
promotes community-wide education, engagement, and sustainable resource
management.




BACKGROUND

o Tioga County SWCD has retained an AEM Strategic Plan since 2005 and worked with
over 350 farms to date.

e There is approximately 35.8% of Tioga County land in farms and about 502 farms
within the county as of 2022 Ag Census data.

e County-Wide Resource Concerns Include: Water Quality, Loss of Farms and Prime
Farmland, Current and Future Environmental Regulations and the Need for Climate
Resiliency in a Changing Environment

e Water Quality is the highest priority as we have goals for Chesapeake Bay TMDL, a
Sole Source Aquifer, NYS DEC Protected Streams, Streams listed on the DEC
Watershed Restoration & Protection Action Strategies, as well as streams listed on the
DEC Priority Waterbodies List

e The District continually provides more technical services in a year (gray shading) than
what the State can reimburse (blue shading), by finding other ways to cover those
costs to ensure our county’s farmers are getting the assistance they need.

NYS DEC Stream Classifications %j AEM Funding Awards vs Actual Total Spent per Year by District

$450,000.00
$400,000.00
$350,000.00
$300,000.00
/ $250,000.00
11 Digit HUCs

B S crck $200,000.00
o oot e 8 ; $150,000.00
~ ] Cavuta Creck
E e ghnioga Rvert [ ) $100,000.00
] Nanticoke Creek - /Y
] Owego Creck ; & $50,000.00
] Thorn Hollow —
. y

Stream Classificaton
A

A/B
<
[alky]

Dollars

| Tipe Creck

Hbs & Butson Creek
] Satterlee Creek
B Apalachin Creck
B Wappasening Creek
B Wyncoop Creek

GOALS

1.Enhance and sustain a strong, locally-led AEM program to support environmental
stewardship on all types of farms in Tioga County.

2.Protect and improve natural resources, especially water quality and quantity across
the county’s streams, rivers, aquifers, and wetlands.

3.Build resiliency in watersheds and agricultural landscapes to ensure long-term
sustainability and viability.

4.Have the technical capacity and resources to effectively implement BMPs and
support farmers with long-term adoption.

5 Promote communication, education, and community engagement about agricultural

environmental management.
6.Assist farms in meeting regulatory requirements and Chesapeake Bay TMDL
nutrient/sediment reduction goals.




AGRICULTURAL
WORKSHOPS

American Farmland Trust’s mission is to save the land that sustains us by protecting farmland,
promoting sound farming practices, and keeping farmers on the land. In partnership with Tioga
County Soil & Water Conservation District, Tioga County Economic Development and Planning,
and Cornell Cooperative Extension of Tioga County, we at American Farmland Trust invite you to
a series of interactive workshops to plan for the future of your farm. These workshops will
provide guidance on making your land accessible to new farmers and provide a framework for
land transfer and succession planning. We know that farmers are busy, so we are hosting these
events at three different locations throughout Tioga County.
Each workshop/location will present the same information on the topic area.
Light refreshments & travel stipends will be provided.

TOPIC: FARM TRANSFER AND SUCCESSION PLANNING
Tuesday, January 13, 1:00 - 3:00 PM at the Berkshire Town Hall, 18 Railroad Ave, Berkshire

Tuesday, January 13, 6:30 - 8:30 PM at the Neighborhood Depot, 146 Central Ave., Owego
Wednesday, January 14, 11:00 AM - 1:00 PM at the Barton Town Hall, 304 State Route
17C, Waverly

REGISTER HERE

Use the QR Code, go to Tioga.cce.cornell.edu/events,
or call (607) 659-5694 to register




Cornell Cooperative Extension CCE Tioga Hilltop Farm
: Candor, NY 13743
Tioga County ¢ 607-659-5694
e. tioga@cornell.edu
tioga.cce.cornell.edu
December 2025 — CCE Tioga Highlights
Prepared for the Tioga County Legislature Update (EDP, Agriculture & Tourism)

Organizational Updates: Annual Meeting held Dec. 9th with program presentations from our
educators, organizational updates from Executive Director Kristi Snyder and Board Members
Recognition of CCE Tioga 2025 Friends of Extension:
Elaine Jardine, Economic Development & Planning— CCE Tioga Association
Farm Bureau of Tioga County — CCE Tioga Association
Danielle Singer, ARG Chair - Agriculture; Glen Martin — 4-H Youth Development
Candor Free Library, Dee McSchwender - Family Resource Center
Cheryll and Bob Berg (Thunderbird Atlat|) — WIOA Workforce;
Kristin Sherman (TOI), Geri Wiley — Smart Energy Choices; Master Gardener Volunteers
These partnerships connect community and multiply our impact!

Campus Connection to Cornell:

e Annie’s Project Classic Course Completed! — This was a 6-week long state-wide course for 15 women
in agriculture which focused farm business risk areas— communication, production, HR, marketing,
Finance and Legal. Kelly is running the course with four other educators across the state, and taught
the Financial Risk Management & Legal classes. We had one farmer from Tioga Co enrolled in this
cohort who remarked that they “really enjoyed the class.” Additional Annie’s Project classes are being
planned for 2026

e CCE Seeds to Success Program — Kelly is participating in a curriculum designed to cover Holistic Farm
Management — finale of the program was held Dec 5% at CCE Oneida.

e Seeking New Partnerships with Cornell - Reaching out to plant breeding faculty and staff for potential
partnerships helping to teach advanced gardeners basic crop genetics, isolation techniques, specific
crop requirements, selection criteria, and seed saving.

Community Connections:
4-H Holiday Community Event Participation: (14) 4-H youth/families volunteered at Owego’s Lights on the
River, and 18 participated in the Nichols Christmas Parade
Tioga County Landowner Workshops — Tioga County EDP, SWCD and CCE Tioga with American Farmland Trust
Topic: Farmland Succession — 3 Sessions
Tuesday, January 13, 1:00 - 3:00 PM at the Berkshire Town Hall, 18 Railroad Ave, Berkshire
Tuesday, January 13, 6:30 — 8:30 PM at the Neighborhood Depot, 146 Central Ave., Owego
Wednesday, January 14, 11:00 AM - 1:00 PM at the Barton Town Hall, 304 State Route 17C, Waverly

Agriculture Outreach Programs - Kelly Jackson, Agriculture Development Specialist

e Local Ag Meetings: Tioga Co. Farm Bureau (board service and meeting attendance)

e Weekly Ag Newsletter — “All Things Agriculture” sent out weekly to 300+ farmers and Ag Service
providers in and around Tioga County by Ag Educator Kelly Jackson + sign-ups continue to grow!

o Ag Technical Support - Daily/Weekly interactions with farmers via email, phone or Farm visits as
requested. Open office hours (Tues 1-4p) for Technical Assistance offered Virtually in December.

e Regional Dairy & Field Crops Ag Team (CCE Tioga Share Membership) — Regional in-person events
(Winter Bale Grazing, Jan . 10 Truxton) and Cornell connected “Boots in the Barn” Dairy Webinar Series
open for registration. Winter Crop Meeting in Dryden, Jan 23™ 10a-3p (6 speakers; CCA & DEC (4)
credits available, $35 registration) https://scnydfc.cce.cornell.edu/events.php




Cornell Cooperative Extension | Tioga County December 2025 Report

Horticulture Outreach, Collaboration & Research —Jean Koski, Horticulturist
e Community Garden Guidance/ Grow Line Hot Topics: answering questions (phone, email or social
media) from the public centered around gardens, soils/testing, and related horticultural issues.
e CCE Tioga Hilltop Farm — Greenhouse care and improvements, preparing for 2026 startup in March,
New benches created for improved work flow and expanded on-site teaching spaces.
e Trimming your Trees — It’s time for Fall/Winter Pruning (not just decorating)!

e Tioga County Gardening Facebook Page https://www.facebook.com/groups/tiogacountygardeners
>>Join the group to see seasonal horticulture interest topics — Winter Seed Sowing Time is Here!

Master Gardeners - Jean Koski, Master Gardener Volunteer Program Coordinator

e Wreath Making Workshop held at the CCE Tioga Hilltop Farm Dec. 6t connecting members of the
public with Master Gardeners, provided tours of the greenhouse and sharing seasonal joy!

e Master Gardener Volunteer Program Development: Regional MGV Training continues with Jean
facilitating weekly Saturday online meetings and monthly in-person events. Coordinating with Cornell
Soil Health Lab director and Greenhouse Manager for on-campus MGV Training events.

e Master Gardener/Horticulture E-news & Program Development: sharing updates, articles of interest,
planning for 2026 activities, including continuing regular article contributions to the Owego Pennysaver

e Seed Share/Exchanges 2026 - Planning new approach for seed exchanges due to lack of large seed
packet donations, potentially including growing seedlings at CCE Tioga Hilltop Farm for distribution.

4-H Youth Development - Robyn Estrella, 4-H Youth Development Resource Educator &
Donna Vergason-Gibson, PT Program Coordinator
Over (60) 4-H youth participated in hands-on learning, service, and skill-building
programs in the month of December.

e 8new Cloverbud (5 to 7 yrs old) and 11 new Traditional (8 to 18 yrs. old) 4-H members created cards,
ornaments and body scrubs to donate to community organizations.

e 42 4-H youth met in eight clubs focused on STEM, Animal Science, Shooting Sports Safety, and more!

o We launched a new Public Speaking Workshop Series, with 5 youth completing the first session and 12
registered for the second.

e CCE Tioga hosted a 4-H Adult Volunteer Holiday Meeting for continued programming planning and
facilitating connections.

e 4-H staff completed professional development at the regional District 4-H Meeting, inspiring a new
Valentine’s cookie-decorating workshop.

e 4-H staff continue to meet with the Tioga County Agricultural Society (Fair Board), Tioga County Farm
Bureau and Tioga County FFA leaders to create plans for youth livestock shows, clinics and agricultural
opportunities

Family Resource Center (FRC/Family Development Programs) - Joan Shultz & Donna Vergason-Gibson,

FRC Program Coordinators/Family Development Educators

FRC Partnered with Local Agencies: Tioga County Libraries (Waverly, Candor, Spencer, Nichols, Berkshire), Inspire

Community Center in Spencer, WAVR Radio & The Morning Times Newspaper, Owego Pennysaver, Waverly

School District, Owego-Apalachin School District, Tioga County Boys and Girls Club. Working with DSS to provide

families in need with gift cards during the Holiday season.

FRC Advisory Committee was held at the Owego Neighborhood Depot in partnership with PACT. There

were 10 agencies represented.

FRC Success Stories:

e A parent who is an art teacher led a craft activity at the Spencer Library Program.

e Agrandparent offered to purchase ornaments for children to make, with the idea that we could hang
them on the village Christmas tree, promoting FRC in their community.

Page | 2



Cornell Cooperative Extension | Tioga County December 2025 Report

e Staff at Candor Library shared starter sourdough with families and provided recipes.

FRC Events Dec 1%t — Dec 21%

Outreach/Playgroup # of # of # of Total # of Attendees Total #
Location Playgroups Families kids (unduplicated) Attending
Spencer (Inspire) 3 5 7 12 27
Spencer (Library) 4 6 15 23 52
Nichols (Library) 3 2 2 2 10
Waverly (Library) 2 4 6 10 15
Berkshire (Library) 3 2 2 4 4
Candor (Library) 2 18 18 36 39
Total 17 37 50 87 147

Smart Energy Choices: Caitlin Tucker (Tioga Co. CEA) & Eileen Hanrahan (Regional SEC Team Mgr)

e Advised 24 residents assisting with access to the Empower+ program, Temporary Assistance,
Weatherization Assistance Program, Tioga County Rural Ministry, Comfort Home, NYSEG Home
Insulation and Air Sealing Rebates, Appliance Upgrade Program, NYS Clean Heat, Energy
Affordability Guarantee, NYS Solar Credit, NY-SUN Solar Block Grant and Subscription Solar

o 4 of these advisees are no-heat situations

e CCE Tioga SEC met with DSS and the Weatherization Assistance Program to create a coordinated
response plan to no-heat situations across Tioga County.

o Attended FRC/PACT Advisory Committee, presenting NYSERDA programming with the other
attendees sharing helpful programs they may be able to refer to the families they work with.

e Eileen continues to support CEAs across the Southern Tier Region with Roof Repair and
Weatherization Campaign and Subscription Solar Campaign in their effective counties

e Devised protocol to handle no-heats during the time the team is on vacation

e Open CEA positions in Broome County, Tioga County (permanent role) - interviews ongoing

WIOA Youth Employment Program/Workforce — Lisa Weston-Bialy, Resource Educator, Mary Hill

e We ended 2025 with a bang: 4 new referrals

e 1 Participant earned their GED this month

e 2 Participants started working in December

e 1 begana Work Experience at Thunderbird Atlatl

e The WIOA Youth Employment program was proud to honor Thunderbird Atlatl for their
contribution to building the skills of the future workforce. Cheryll and Bob Berg are tremendous
partners to our program by sending young people to our program and training several of our
participants in Work Based learning opportunities. They are patient and skilled at bringing out the
best in our young people.

Respectfully Submitted,

Kristi K. Snyder, Ph.D.

Executive Director, CCE Tioga CCE Tioga Hilltop Farm - Candor
Agriculture Development & Outreach

Extension of Extension - Owego 4 et ot
Youth, Families & Smart Energy Programs

Cornell Cooperative Extension

WIOA @ Smart Energy Choices

Workforce . ew | Regional Ciean

YORK
Development SR E‘::EQ:L

Cornell Cooperative Extension
qg “?rler South Central NY Dairy and Field Crops Program

Tioga.cce.cornelll.edu | 607.659.5694 | Tioga@cornell.edu

Page | 3



Tioga County Tourism
December
2025

DRI Wayfinding Sign Project

Signs have been approved by the Village of Owego Board and we are awaiting final permits
from DOT.

Content Project Progress:

Fall: Hunting, Iron Kettle Farm, Jackson's Pumpkin Farm, Stoughton's Corn Maze, Coffee Shop
with Fall Flavors (Annies, Spellbound, Roasted), Engelberts Farm Store, Little Creek Farm,
fishing, Halloween Fest, Owego Porchfest, arts (galleries and TAC)

Winter: Outdoor activity with snow, Holiday Showcase Lights on the River, December First
Friday, Holiday Magic and/or Village Green Tree Display, Tioga Downs Winterfest, Holiday Teg,
Coffee Shop, holiday shopping

MultiView Campaign:

The MultiView digital Advertising Campaign Launched in September. As of 12.24.25, the data
shows over 400,000 impressions and an average of 25 unique visits per day, with top pages
being the Tioga Antiques Trail page and the Events Calendar. Additional training and review of
data portal is pending.

Susquehanna Heritage Area

Tioga has participated in a steering committee meeting and has contributed an asset list to
identify arts, cultural and historic points of interest including businesses, museums, galleries,
etc...

Finger Lakes Regional Tourism Council

The final phase of a region-wide outdoor recreation project is being completed. This will
feature all 14 counties in the Finger Lakes region and will serve as a resource for travel
planning. It will be marketed to targeted audiences through digital advertising.

Finger Lakes Wine Country

A Strategic Plan is being developed to determine the direction of the organization. FLWC has

begun and organizational transition. Tioga will continue to be involved at the current time and
determine county involvement once a clear direction is established.



VN X 00°000°000C $ ‘parwqns uoned|jddy syoafouad uoney s901A49S A1iadoud (181) 2AleNRIU| jueg pue 2addoL| 9T
VN X 00'00T‘€Z8'T S $s920.4d Ul - papiemy s109(o.d uonell|iqeyad pue uoiijowsq punoy uadQ (1g7) 2A13eIMU| Sjueg pue] 2addl| ST
VN X 00°000'002 $ 'PapJeme  JeaA 51500 [euopiesado € 1e9A ‘T @seyd (1g1) aAneniu| yueg pueq 2adoL| vT
VN X 00'9TE'8EY S 'ss200.d ul Buippiq 193f0.d uoney|iIqeyal 039MQ ‘BNUIAY YHON +9-79 193435 UIBN AN 20adoL| €T
VN X agl $s900.d ul - uonesijddy *s9315 |elasnpul [enualod 1oy salpnis Sulisauldua-aid $931s eaJe AL1aqsuno - g Yoedl AN 1S4 vanpL| ¢
YN X 00°000°0S5%  $ ‘papJeme uoiesl|ddy 3lo1d Suiaauigul-a.d |1eJ L-Yim-|ley eS011 UIBYLION 1d3 dHYdO vapL| Tt
VN X 00'000'66 S 552204 U] - papIEmMy weJgo.d asea uawdinb3 5agy vasn vanL| ot
VN X 00'000'06 $ $s3004d Ul - 1n03S0|) ue|d Supaauidul A1agsuno 9agy vasn vapL| 6
S9A X 00°000°TTT S papleme jou - uoiedijddy SIOUDIN JO UMOL 8U3 10§ Ue|d dAIsUaya.dwo) e dojaaag|  weidold Yimoup Jews Ajunwwo) SOd SAN sjoyoIN ‘'L| 8
SOA X 00'TLLTLT $ ‘papleme uonedijddy jood a1jqnd 03 syuswanoaduwi |eyided 10ddns 03 Suipund j0od 21jgnd 08amO ‘A - || SINIMS AN o8amQo ‘Al L
S9A X *ss9204d ul SuippigaJ 199[0id 0JomQ 193.3S 9|dwa ] 06 - StusWBA0IdWI 3pedey 101191X] UO[3E}S 321|0d 0oMQ - Juei3 (4d3) dHYdO 08amO ‘Al 9
ON X 00'0vZ'eIT S panss| |esodoud aanuadu| sapesgdn/saseyound yuswdinb3 JUeID sJainpejnuely ||ews asa| spoompieH esoll| S
SO\ X 00'000°0S S *ss900.4d ui udissq yied ynws ‘M 981099 Joy ue|d yied iiseN we1g0.1d JUBWUIAA0Y 8207 AQYIY JHY aysyeg Ll ¥
S9A X 00°000°000°T $ 'ssa00.d uj 10e13U0D 191U UOREINP3 [BIIUYIS | PUE J93Je) [BUOISaY JO InO pling juswdojaraq ealy anpniselyu| DYy| $3008 18/ASOV0| €
ON X 00°000°TT8 S *$s9204d uj 10B1U0) J93U9) UO[BINP3 [B2IUYDS | pUE 193D [euol3aY JO 1IN0 p|ing Suipuads padaulg Ajjeuoissai8uo)| $3008 18/ASOVO| T
EENN X 00°0Tb'TEL S *ssa004d ul Bulppiq 123(04d AN 192.15 SIym 9T-¥T pue 0T JO uoieyjiqeysy A PUnoy AN 240159y aS3| AS|leAdeMSN 'A| T
[3ue)siss e
uoinnjosay B 821n0saYy paisanbay sniels asodind 824N0§ JuBID jueoi|ddy
|esjuyoay ;
9z-uer
sapuady apisInQ - 19ayspeaids Supjoel) yueso dal
S9A VN VN 00°00000S S $$9004d ul - uonedjddy oB3J1N0 AJUNWWOD pUE SJUBWSSISSE JuUBID) JUBWISSISSY PlRIUMOIg Yd3I Aunojesoll| ¢T
|ejuswuoliAus ‘Sujuueld ‘AJojusaul pjplumo.q 1oy Suipunyg
SOA VN VN 00'0L2TC S | ss9004d ui -31sanbas uoisuaixy sosuadxa pJend ajl] asinquwias 03 Suipung jood 211gnd 089MQ ‘A - SINIMS AN Awnojedoil| TT
SIA VN VN aglL paniwgns uopedydde-aid ‘sappadoud paiysi|q/paucpueqe 1oy uipuny uoiiljowsd J0dD1 —1ea4y| Jusuiww| 54ad Awuno) edoll| 0T
S9A VN VN 00'€ES’EvT S ssaooud ul - papiemy *swelgo.d andsal pooy pue ‘Usydy sal3IeyD 21joyie) — sanl|ided d1|qnd 59ad Awunojegoll| 6
ANunwwo ‘94ed s|[1S 94| Ysi|qeisa 03 5dnJ3 pooy 3|IqON
S9A VN VN 00'000°00Z S paniwgns uoped||ddy ‘seahojdwa G > Y}Im Sassauisng ||ews 10y Suipuny sapinoid |emauay - weidoud as1dIs3u0DIN 5EAD Awunoj edoil| 8
SOA VN VN 000052t $ ssa004d U] - papiemy *soaho|dwa § > YIm SassauIsnq |[ews 104 Bulpuny sapIAO.d weJigoud as1udialua0IN 590D Awunojedoll| £
S9A VN VN 00'0SE'9S S ssa004d ul - papiemy Ajuno) e3o1] Ui saiga1e4}s UOIIINPa BISEM SulpAday pue uondnpay A1se |eddiuniy Aunoj edoil| 9
juawadw pue puedxa 03 Jaeue|A Ayjigeulelsns Joj spung
SIA VN VN TTL9L'L S ssa00.d ul - papiemy "315em snop.ezey pjoyasnoy Jo [esodsip tadoud 1o} spuny we.g01d 2358 SnopJezeH pjoyasnoy Awnojegoll| S
jenuue VN VN agl pa1s|dwod || aseyd Aauno) esol| ul sqnpd § J0j weudoud juesd a|iqowmous 3]1qOWMOUS SAN Awunojedoil| ¥
SIA VN vN 00°000'59T  $ $5320.d U1 - IN0350[) 089MQ ‘@AY YHON T8 J0 uone|iqeyay 9AV YHON T8 — lIA PUnoy AN 2403say as3 Aunojedoll| €
S8A VN VN 00'000°000°T $ ssadoud uj - papiemy o0FamQ ‘199.1S e 0S-81 JO UoneM|IgeYdY s|ied] e8ol1] — |IA PUNOY AN 240353y @53 Aunojedoil| ¢
SOA VYN VN 00'000°008°T $ ss9204d ul - paplemy 08amQ 193.3S JU0.4 08T-8LT JO Uolell|igeyay 9SNOH JaAY — |A punoy AN 240153y ds3 Awnojedoll| T
JUB)S|SS
uonnjosay SR 221Nn0S8Y paisanbay SNiels asodind 224N0S JueID juedijddy
|eaiuyoay
gz-uer

Auno) edoiy - 193yspeasds Suppdes) Juels 4a3




REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -26 AUTHORIZING LEGISLATIVE CHAIR
SIGNATURE ON CONTRACTS FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH DELUGE
MEDIA FOR PROMOTIONAL CONTENT

WHEREAS: Tioga County Economic Development & Planning and

Sustainability would like to execute a contract with Deluge Media for

professional services for public relations/social media; and

WHEREAS: These professional services will be produced monthly from

January 1, 2026 through December 31, 2026, for the total cost of

$11,208.64; and

WHEREAS: The invoice will be assigned as follows:

Tioga County Economic Development: $2,968.18

Tioga County Planning: $1,679.55

Tioga County Sustainability: $6,560.91

Therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature authorizes and directs the

Legislative Chair or their designee to enter info this agreement with Deluge
Media as approved by the County Atforney.



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -26 RECOMMEND MEMBERS TO THE
SUSQUEHANNA HERITAGE AREA
COMMISSION

WHEREAS: Per Resolution 25-16, the Tioga County Legislature resolved that
the Economic Development and Planning Committee recommend
designees for the Municipal Representative and the Advisory Board
Member on the Susquehanna Heritage Area (SHA) Commission for the
term of office of the County Legislative Chair who appoints said persons;
and

WHEREAS: Currently Rebecca Maffei, Tioga County Tourism Director, and
Elaine Jardine, Tioga County Planning Director, have been serving as the
two (2) SHA Commission members; and

WHEREAS: Elaine Jardine, Tioga Couty Planning Director, is refiring as of
February 2026 and will no longer serve as the Advisory Board Member;
and

WHEREAS: Marley Norton, Community Development Specialist of
Economic Development and Planning, has recently been hired and is
willing to serve as the Advisory Board Member on the SHA Commission;
and

WHEREAS: Rebecca Maffei, Tioga County Tourism Director, and Marley
Norton, Community Development Specialist, are wiling to serve as the two
(2) SHA Commission members; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Economic Development and Planning Committee
recommend Rebecca Maffei, the Tioga County Tourism Director, continue
to serve as the Municipal Representative and Marley Norton, Community
Development Specidlist, o serve as the Advisory Board Member on the
Susquehanna Heritage Area Commission for the ferm of office of the
County Legislative Chair who appoints said person.



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -26 AUTHORIZE APPOINTMENT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE COORDINATOR IN
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING

WHEREAS: Legislative approval is required for any appointment fo a
Management/Confidential position within Tioga County; and

WHEREAS: The Director of Economic Development and Planning was authorized
to create the Administrative Coordinator position via Resolution #291-25; and

WHEREAS: The Director of Economic Development and Planning reviewed
applications, conducted interviews and identified a qualified candidate with
prior relevant work experience; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Director of Economic Development and Planning is hereby
authorized to provisionally appoint Lisa Williams to the position of Administrative
Coordinator, pending successful completion of civil service examination
requirements at an annual Management/Confidential salary of $46,000.00
effective February 7, 2026.



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -26 AUTHORIZE GRANT APPLICATION TO
EPA BROWNFIELD COMMUNITY WIDE
ASSESSMENT PROGRAM AND AUTHORIZE
COUNTY PLANNING DIRECTOR AS
AUTHORIZED ORGANIZATIONAL
REPRESENTATIVE

WHEREAS: Tioga County has located throughout it several abandoned,
underutilized and/or contaminated or potentially contaminated sites thaf
drain the County’s tax base as many of these properties are in poor
condition and delinquent in real property faxes; and

WHEREAS: The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has a grant program
that provides funding to assess these deleterious sites both in terms of
contamination evaluations and planning for site reuse called the
Brownfields Community Wide Assessment Program; and

WHEREAS: Tioga County is eligible for $500,000 through this EPA Program to
hire a consultant to conduct the environmental and planning activities;
and

WHEREAS: There is no match requirement for this grant program and the
application deadline is January 26, 2026; and

WHEREAS: The EPA requires the Authorized Organizational Representative
(AOR) be named on the federal grant application paperwork, although
signatures are not required until the grant is awarded and accepted; and

WHEREAS: The AOR for grant application purposes should be an
administrative worker who will manage the grant project if awarded; and

WHEREAS: The County Planning Director will be the staff person who will be
managing this grant project and performing associated grant
administration if awarded and accepted; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature hereby authorizes said grant
application in the amount of $500,000; and be it further



RESOLVED: That the County Legislature hereby designates the County
Planning Director as the Authorized Organizational Representative for the
purposes of the EPA Brownfields Communitywide Assessment Grant only
and to sign all grant application paperwork contingent upon review and
approval by the County Attorney.



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -26 AMENDMENT OF THE BYLAWS OF THE TIOGA
COUNTY PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION (TCPDC), A NEW YORK
LAND BANK TO DECREASE THE NUMBER OF
BOARD MEMBERS FROM NINE TO SEVEN,
AND TO CHANGE BOARD MEMBER
QUALIFICATIONS

WHEREAS: Per Resolution No. 256-16, the Tioga County Legislature
authorized the application and establishment of the Tioga County Property
Development Corporation; and

WHEREAS: Per said resolution, the TCPDC Bylaws provide that any
amendments regarding the term, or qualification of members of the Board
shall require the approval of the Tioga County Legislature; therefore be it
RESOLVED: The following changes to the Bylaws include:

1. That the number of Board Members shall decrease from nine fo seven.
2. The members of the Board of Directors shall serve for 2 or 3-year terms.
3. The membership shall consist of:

Three (3) public officers of separate municipalities within Tioga County (or
a member of a County Agency) and their membership shall be

conditioned upon holding their public office

One (1) public officer holding a County Legislafure position and their
membership shall be conditioned upon holding the public office

Two (2) at-large representatives

One (1) representative of the non-profit sector and their membership shall
be conditioned upon holding a non-profit sector position; or if a non-profit
sector representative cannot be found, the membership may be filled by
an at-large representative



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -26 APPOINT AT-LARGE BOARD MEMBER TO THE
TIOGA COUNTY PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION BOARD

WHEREAS: Per Resolution #272-21 the Tioga County Legislature appointed
Hannah Murray as a Board Member on the Tioga County Property
Development Corporation (TCPDC)Board of Directors to fill a vacancy; and

WHEREAS: The TCPDC Bylaws allowed for this appointment conditioned that
Hannah Murray was a public officer of a municipality within Tioga County
or a member of a County Agency. That appointment was conditioned
upon Hannah Murray holding her position as a Board of Education Member
for the Candor Central School District; and

WHEREAS: Hannah Murray no longer holds that position; and

WHEREAS: The TCPDC Board of Directors currently has an At-Large
Representative position vacancy and the TCPDC Bylaws allow for an At-
Large Representative position to be filled by a resident of Tioga County;
and

WHEREAS: Hannah Murray is a resident of Tioga County and is wiling and
able to serve on the TCPDC Board of Directors as an At-Large Board
Member; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature hereby appoints Hannah
Murray to the Tioga County Property Development Corporation Board of
Directors as an At-Large Board Member for a two-year term of 1/1/26-
12/31/27 conditioned upon her residency in Tioga County.



